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Customer Relationship Management (CRM) Solutions RFP 

Questions Received 

1. Who are the users of CRM Application? Are they part of Metro Atlanta Industry 
Partnerships? Is the need for 25 licenses only? Primary users are Atlanta CareerRise staff 
and WorkSource Directors and Business Services Representatives. In addition, we may have 
a small number of community providers join the CRM. Eventually, we wish to add users 
from partner organizations. 

2. Who are the Partner portal users? Are they the users from five Local workforce 
development boards? Again are we looking at a maximum of 25 users? Yes, a maximum of 
25. Primary users are Atlanta CareerRise staff and WorkSource Directors and Business 
Services Representatives. In addition, we may have a small number of community providers 
join the CRM.  

3. Do we have to budget the licensing cost for having in place an e-digital signature application 
like echosign or DocuSign as part of the proposal? We ask this because this is typically an 
added license cost over and above the CRM licenses involved, OR do you have any existing 
e-signature solution you are using that you would like us to integrate with? Yes, it should be 
included in the budget. We do not currently have a solution.  

4. Do you intend to store all Job seekers data in this CRM or limited to only the Employers Info 
and their relationship with the workforce development boards? Employer information only 
and their relationships with the WorkSource Boards, Atlanta CareerRise and any additional 
users as described above. This platform is intended to be a business/employer services CRM 
initially and not intended to house job seeker information at this time.  

5. Can you detail further the requirements on “Ability to digitally match individual job-seekers 
with employment opportunities based on the alignment of their individual experience and 
skills with the requirements of the available positions”? What are those requirements? This 
is not intended for the first phase of the CRM and should not be included in the proposal.  

6. “Automated referral of staff to the appropriate employer for further screening and 
consideration.” - pls clarify on what is meant by referral of staff to employer? Also in the 
absence of the employer portal, how will this referral work? As in what will be the channel 
of the referral. Users will be assigned employers by geography and/or industry. Some ability 
for the system to auto-assign is desired. For example, with five workforce boards across the 
ten-county metro-Atlanta region, there may be some desire to assign the corporate home 
office to the business services representative of the local area in which the business is 
positioned.  

7. Are there any requirements around data migration/one-time initial load of data into the 
CRM? If yes, can you give indicative data volumes that we can consider to size the effort? 
Since there are multiple separate data sets, including spreadsheets, its unclear to us at this 
point how much current information will be useable. This would have to be determined 
within the project. However, it is not anticipated this would be an overly-burdensome 
process as the local areas currently do not have a high volume of activity that would need to 
be migrated.  
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8. Do you have any specialized reporting tools (like Tableau, Power BI etc) or are 
reports/dashboards using the built-in CRM reports/dashboards are good enough? If you do 
not have an existing reporting dashboard would you like us to price a reporting tool as an 
option? Unclear at this point whether that exists and/or would be available to us or is 
needed. It is expected existing functionality within the selected CRM would be sufficient for 
phase one. 

9. Our understanding is Employer facing portal is desired. Do you have an idea on the number 
of licenses needed or an average number of logins per month by these employers to update 
their information including posting announcements on any new jobs with their 
organization? Since, this is new territory, we don’t know this. We currently have 
relationships with several hundred employers across the user group but expect a smaller 
number will engage in this initial phase.  

10. Do you have any existing BI tools that can be leveraged? The five local areas utilizing this 
CRM do not have a single BI tool licensed across the region to leverage with this application.   

11. If need new BI licenses how many of the 25 users will need Developer/ Report creator 
license, and how many Viewer/Explorer license (Can only view reports and dashboards that 
are published). Of the initial 25 users, we envision 3 will need developer/report creator 
licenses with the remaining at the viewer/explorer level.  

12. Do you have the list of reports to be built? If so, how many reports to be delivered as part of 
this engagement? Unknown at this point  

13. Does the $80K budget include BI licenses + CRM Licenses and Implementation services of 
CRM and BI products? Is this understanding correct? It is correct.  

14. When is the tentative project start date and tentative go live date? We hope to launch in 
the fall of 2020.  

15. Given the tentative budget can we assume the software licenses are only to be estimated 
for one year and Annual maintenance and renewal costs not included? Correct. 

16. How many weeks of post production support are you expecting? Unknown; we expect the 
proposer to advise on a training/implementation plan and related costs.  

17. Should we assume the reports and dashboards are to be built out of only CRM data and no 
other data sources are involved for this engagement? Correct 

18. If not what are the other sources will data have to be extracted for building the reports? 
None that are known at this time. 

19. Since the scope clearly says real time reports and dashboards, we assume there is no need 
for a warehouse and any other ETL tool involvement here. Please clarify if this is correct. 
Correct.  

20. As part of the report development do we need to rebuild any of your legacy reports that 
you have in some way or the other form? If so can you provide how many reports? Not 
needed. 

21. Do you need any end user training, admin training and developer training as part of the 
implementation services? -- Is this for both CRM and Reports area? Yes, should be included.  

22. If so, do you know how many users you are looking to train in each of the above areas? 3 for 
reports and the remaining for CRM.  

23. For reports do you need the single sign-on functionality if we use a different tool, other 
than an in built reports tool in CRM? Single sign-on would be preferred.  



June 8, 2020   Page 3 
 

24. Do you have any requirements around embedding these dashboards so that people can 
access them? E.g. Embedding into your internal portal or even embedding dashboards into 
the partner portal and can you provide more details around? No. 

25. Do you have any in house BI team/ Expertise in place that can work with the 
implementation team? No 

26. Are you open to have the project delivered leveraging Onshore, Near Shore, Offshore 
model?  What is your preference? The physical location of the proposer’s office or people 
working on this project is not part of the selection criteria.  The Contractor’s team must be 
available for progress meetings and be responsive during normal working hours (Monday to 
Friday, 9:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m.) on Eastern Standard Time.   

27. Are open to a 90% offshore and 10% onshore model to take advantage of low 
implementation cost and awareness of Covid 19? See above answer (#26) 

28. Do we need to give the price for 3 years support or only for the supply and implementation 
of CRM software? Please include the cost of ongoing support.  

29. Does the estimated budget of $ 80,000 include 3 years support or only for the technology 
licensing & its one time cost. Year 1 only.  

30. Submission - Given the Covid-19 realities & challenges, can we just submit electronically 
only instead of PHYSICAL copy ? Is submission of Physical copy mandatory. 1 physical copy is 
required to be delivered by the United States Postal Service, in addition to the electronic 
copy. 

31. The RFP states a maximum of 15 pages with double sided printing is acceptable ? Does it 
mean a maximum of 30 page content excluding the covering letter? 15 page content max. 

32. For Service delivery to employers- Do we need to integrate other portal with CRM? No 
33. Kindly Share more details on Ability to integrate with partner agencies to exchange 

employer data and employer accounts We want to be able to share information and jointly 
add to it within the portal and not have duplicate accounts for the same employer. This 
refers to activity integration at this point, not systems integration.  

34. Please share more details on Ability to integrate with partner agencies to exchange 
employer data and employer accounts Same as above.  

35. Please share more details on Tracking job fairs and outcomes of these events/activities to 
understand the usefulness and effectiveness of these activities (e.g., capture businesses 
involved and business attendance) We are interested in tracking “events” like job fairs 
through the system.  

36. Please share more details on Pre-configured business services specific functionality for 
reporting We would prefer the system already be set up in a workforce “business services” 
framework.  

37. Overall understanding on Partner Portal (with up to 25 users) and Employer facing portal 
(optional but desired)  By partners we mean the system users (MAIP, WorkSource and 
community based providers). By employers we mean those employers we work with having 
the ability to input information including job openings.  

38. Do we need to propose a team which will should work from onsite location or we can 
propose a team from offshore location like India.  The physical location of the proposer’s 
office or people working on this project is not part of the selection criteria.  The 
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Contractor’s team must be available for progress meetings and be responsive during normal 
working hours (Monday to Friday, 9:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m.) on Eastern Standard Time.   

39. Can we share only soft copy of the proposal considering the current situation? Will ARC 
waive off the Hard copy? 1 physical copy is required to be delivered by the United States 
Postal Service, in addition to the electronic copy. 

40. Is ARC/MAIP looking for something to post so job seekers can become full time employees, 
or are talent suppliers involved? Expanding on this, for the SaaS solution you require is it 
more of an career/job board/hiring HR solution? Or an external workforce (non-W2) 
management platform/solution that Admins in Atlanta can use, and also the talent suppliers 
can use? See Question response below. 

41. Are you looking for 3rd party services / temp workers on these boards? We are not looking 
to develop what is commonly referred to as a “labor exchange” matching system. Our 
primary interest is in a business services portal that would have the functionality described 
in the RFP. As part of that, and optional, we are interested in an employer portal, where 
employers could “post” or make us aware of open positions. We are not looking to have a 
connected, match system with job seekers at this time. If by “talent suppliers” you mean 
agencies with job seekers to recruitment firms, we are not anticipating they would be a part 
of this project.   

42. In the document it was mentioned one hard copy and one digital copy has to be submitted. 
Due to the current conditions happening, can we submit the proposal through email? Kindly 
let me know  1 physical copy is required to be delivered by the United States Postal Service, 
in addition to the electronic copy. 

43. Does the $80K include services and licenses? Yes 
44. What kind of integrations? Unclear at this point.  
45. What does each department currently use? The users will be from multiple, separate 

organizations. Multiple systems including spreadsheets are used.  
46. Do you have a current e signature application that you want us to leverage? No 
47. Do you have existing licenses for software that you require us to leverage? No 
48. How many partner integrations are required for go live? In the future? Unclear.  
49. Can you please explain the legacy system and current business processes?  There is not a 

single legacy system. As stated above multiple systems including spreadsheets are currently 
used.  

50. Can you list all required third party technology integrations? Unknown at this time. We do 
not expect a large number of these.  

51. What kind of data needs to be migrated? Can you please provide amount of data and size of 
it?  Since there are multiple separate data sets, including spreadsheets.  It is unclear to us at 
this point how much current information will be useable. This would have to be determined 
within the project. 

52. How many business services and administrative staff users will there be across the 5 Local 
Workforce Development Boards, in addition to the 25 partner portal users. On page 2 you 
reference, “Ability to install, train and support administrators and users; up to 25 users in 
the initial implementation.” Are these the same uses as the partner portal users or a 
different user group. They are the same users. 25 users total for the project.  
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53. On Page 2, you reference “Geographic location of the organization’s office performing the 
work.”. Are you open to a vendor that works with remote teams, so long as the vendor is 
available during local time, and can be available on site as needed? The physical location of 
the proposer’s office or people working on this project is not part of the selection criteria.  
The Contractor’s team must be available for progress meetings and be responsive during 
normal working hours (Monday to Friday, 9:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m.) on Eastern Standard Time.   

54. If interviews or demonstrations are requested, will these be virtual or in person? If needed, 
they will be virtual. 

55. On page 4 it states, “On the Job Training (OJT) and Incumbent Worker Training (IWT) 
applications, contracts, and other related documentation.” Are these examples of the 
documents you would need to have electronically signed? Yes 

56. On page 4, “Data System Integration: Need a single comprehensive system with the 
capability to connect to multiple databases.” How many systems do you anticipate in the 
first phase, and what types of records, i.e., business account, contact and jobs records, etc. 
Since there are multiple separate data sets, including spreadsheets, it is unclear to us at this 
point how much current information will be useable. This would have to be determined 
within the project. 

57. Does ARC and or it’s partners currently have sets of data either in other databases or 
spreadsheet formats that would need to be uploaded into the system. If so, can ARC 
provide a single file or does the vendor need to provide data preparation services? 
Unknown at this time.  

58. On page 4, “Users are able to configure fields and values without coding”. Will these 
administrative users and or business users? Administrative.  

59. On page 5, “Repository for job orders developed by contractors. Also, the system would 
ideally serve as a repository for publicly advertised job openings.” Will the CRM system 
need to integrate with any specific job boards or aggregation? No, it will not need to 
integrate in phase one but the ability to do so in the future is desirable.  

60. On page 5, “Ability to digitally match individual job-seekers with employment opportunities 
based on alignment of their individual experience and skills with the requirements of the 
available positions.” For purposes of job matching and referrals, how does ARC anticipate 
job seeker data coming into the system? Will job ready candidates only be entered for 
purposes of matching, or will there be an integration with another system, such as the state 
workforce system for WIOA. Unclear at this time. Opportunities to do this will need to be 
considered in phase 1 implementation.  

61. What sort of campaigns will ARC want to send out. Does that include email and SMS 
messaging? Does ARC currently have an email marketing platform and or an SMS marketing 
platform? Campaigns would include information and resources for employers. 
Opportunities to participate in hiring events, etc. MAIP will most likely be doing this and 
currently uses Mailchimp.  

62. On page 5, “Track job fairs and outcomes of these events/activities to understand the 
usefulness and effectiveness of these activities (e.g., capture businesses involved and 
business attendance).” Will ARC need a mechanism for businesses to register for job fairs, 
and sign in when they attend? We have other systems to register people including 
Eventbrite but are not opposed to having this functionality within the CRM.  
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63. Page 6, “Partner Portal (with up to 25 users)”, Similar to question # 1, will the partner portal 
users be a different set of users then the LWDB business services users. E.g., Chambers of 
Commerce, VocRehab, etc. They are the same. 25 users total.  

64. Page 6, “Employer facing portal”. How many employers do you anticipate using the system 
on an annual basis? Will employers be involved in the user testing of the portal, for user 
feedback? We currently work with a couple hundred employers. Ideally, we’d want a small 
number of employers to be able to participate in user testing and give us feedback.  

65. Page 6, “and find/connect training providers in their industry.” Will the portal need to track 
and categorize training providers and the programs they offer? Will the system need to 
create a “referral” record if the employer is interested or just provide contact information? 
Yes, ideally we would like to be able to track and categorize training providers and their 
programs within the system. Contact information is required but a referral record or way to 
track value on this would be a bonus.  

66. Is the initial budget of $80,000 is for implementation services, software, or both? Both  
67. What is the number of work source board (internal users) will the ARC have in addition to 

the 25 partner users? 25 is the total number of users.  
68. What requirements must be addressed in the initial phase within the $80,000 budget, which 

are optional? As stated in the proposal, the employer portal is optional.  
69. Is this RFP just for a CRM or should it also include add-ons that enable users to 

edit/electronically sign documents that have been scanned into the system? Please include 
this capability.  

70. Approximately, how many individual users from the five area WorkSource Boards business 
services representatives and additional regional partners will need to access a portal where 
they can input job opportunities and hiring needs? 25 is the total number of users. 

71. Approximately how many employers do you anticipate need access to a portal for inputting 
job opportunities and hiring needs, and potentially seeing matched employee candidates? 
While we work with several hundred employers, we are planning on having a small number 
have access in the initial phase.  

72. Will individual job seekers need access to either the same portal or a connected one where 
they can enter their applications or resumes for available job opportunities? No.  

73. What version of Salesforce (Enterprise, Professional, etc.) or other CRM and version are you 
currently using? We do not currently have a CRM. 

74. How many people, by the department, do you have using your current system? NA 
75. Which users are using the system the most? Least? Why? NA 
76. If using Salesforce, what services (Sales Cloud, Marketing Cloud, Service Cloud, Pardot, 

MuleSoft, etc.) do you currently have?  NA 
77. What do you like about your current CRM? NA 
78. What would you like to improve? NA 
79. What are your top 3 goals for implementing a CRM? Document and share our current 

employer relationships in a single, shared system. Use the system to and the visibility of the 
information to coordinate and align our efforts. Build the system’s functionality and reach 
over time to be more effective.  



June 8, 2020   Page 7 
 

80. Tell me about the manual processes you currently have (i.e., ones where you’re using 
spreadsheets, docs, or other tools to set-up or track something). Each organization has a 
variety of “homemade” systems including spreadsheets.  

81. Tell me about other systems you use: ERP - HR, Accounting, SCM (Supply Chain 
Management/Order Management). Multiple organizations are a part of this using a variety 
of systems.  

82. Would you like to integrate any of these systems with your CRM now or in the future?  Not 
a goal for this effort.              

83. How do you currently support the users of your current systems? NA 
84. What type of analytics would your users or your executives like/want to see across the 

organization? Reports YES; Dashboards? YES 
85. Anything else you would like us to know? NA 


